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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator – 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, 
and the Arts  

COMMITTEE REPORT 

Bill No. 191-36 (COR) As Amended by the
Committee on Economic Development, 

Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the 
Arts

Introduced by Clynton E. Ridgell

“AN ACT TO AMEND § 3402 OF ARTICLE 4, 
CHAPTER 3, DIVISION 1, TITLE 9, GUAM 

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES AND 
REGULATIONS, RELATIVE TO ALLOWING 

WILD DEER TO BE TAKEN AND HARBORED 
AS LIVESTOCK.”

238 Archbishop Flores St ∙ Suite 906 – DNA Building ∙ Hagåtña GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ∙ Fax: (671) 475-4768 

clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org

mailto:sen.cridgell@teleguam.net


Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator – 36th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, 
and the Arts 

238 Archbishop Flores St ∙ Suite 906 – DNA Building ∙ Hagåtña GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ∙ Fax: (671) 475-4768 

clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org

September 16, 2022

MEMORANDUM 

To: All Members 

Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and 

the Arts 

From: Senator Clynton E. Ridgell 

Committee Chairperson 

Subject: Committee Report on Bill No. 191-36 (COR) As amended by the Committee

Transmitted herewith is the Committee Report on Bill No. 191-36 (COR) As amended by 
the Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts – 
"AN ACT TO AMEND § 3402 OF ARTICLE 4, CHAPTER 3, DIVISION 1, TITLE 9, GUAM 
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES AND REGULATIONS, RELATIVE TO ALLOWING WILD DEER 
TO BE TAKEN AND HARBORED AS LIVESTOCK," Introduced by Clynton E. Ridgell.

This report includes the following: 

• Copy of COR Referral of Bill No. 191-36 (COR)

• Notices of Public Hearing & Other Correspondence

• Copy of the Public Hearing Agenda

• Public Hearing Sign-in Sheet

• Submitted Testimonies

• Committee Report Digest

• Bill No. 191-36 (COR) As introduced
• Bill No. 191-36 (COR) As amended by the Committee
• Copy of Fiscal Note from Bureau of Budget and Management Research

• Committee Vote Sheet

Please take the appropriate action on the attached vote sheet; your attention to this matter is greatly 

appreciated. Should you have any questions or concerns, please contact my office. 

Si Yu'os ma'åse' 

mailto:sen.cridgell@teleguam.net
https://www.guamlegislature.com/36th_Guam_Legislature/Bills_Introduced_36th/Bill%20No.%20134-36%20(COR).pdf


Vice Speaker 

TINA ROSE MUÑA BARNES 
CHAIRPERSON, COMMITTEE ON RULES 
I Mina'trentai Sais Na Liheslaturan Guåhan 

September 14, 2021 

MEMO 
To: Rennae Meno 

Clerk of the Legislature 

Attorney Ana Won Pat-Borja 
Legislative Legal Counsel  

From: Senator Amanda L. Shelton 
Acting Chairperson, Committee on Rules 

Re: Referral of Bill No. 191-36 (COR) 

Håfa Adai, 

As per my authority as Acting Chairperson of the Committee on Rules and subject to §6.01(d), Rule VI 
of our Standing Rules, I am forwarding the referral of Bill No. 191-36 (COR) – Clynton E. Ridgell – “AN 
ACT TO AMEND § 3402 OF ARTICLE 4, CHAPTER 3, DIVISION 1, TITLE 9, GUAM 
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES, RELATIVE TO ALLOWING WILD DEER TO BE TAKEN AND 
HARBORED AS LIVESTOCK.” 

Please ensure that the subject bill is referred to the Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, 
Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts, chaired by Senator Clynton E. Ridgell. 

I also request that the same be forwarded to the prime sponsor of the subject bill. 

If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact Mary Maravilla, Committee on Rules 
Director at 472-2461. 

Thank you for your attention to this important matter. 

Respectfully, 

Senator Amanda L. Shelton 
Acting Chairperson, Committee on Rules 

GUAM CONGRESS BUILDING 
163 CHALAN SANTO PAPA  

HAGÅTÑA, GUAM  96910 
TEL 671-472-2461 

COR@GUAMLEGISLATURE.ORG 



Erin M. Grajek <egrajek@guamlegislature.org>

FIRST NOTICE of Virtual Public Hearing
Erin M. Grajek <egrajek@guamlegislature.org> Tue, Nov 9, 2021 at 8:52 AM
Bcc: phnotice@guamlegislature.org

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

November 9, 2021

MEMORANDUM

To:   All Senators, Stakeholders, Media

From:   Senator Clynton E. Ridgell

Re:    FIRST NOTICE of Virtual
Public Hearing: Wednesday – November 17, 2021

The
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and
the Arts will conduct a series
of Virtual Public Hearings on Wednesday – November
17, 2021 at 9:00 am via Zoom Video Conference.

The
Committee will hear and accept testimony on the following items:

Bill
No. 191-36 (COR) An Act to Amend § 3402 of Article 4, Chapter 3,
 Division 1, Title 9, Guam Administrative
Rules, Relative to Allowing Wild Deer
to be Taken and Harbored as Livestock.

Bill
No. 194-36 (COR) An Act to Amend § 14101 of Chapter 14,
Division 4, Title 8, Guam Administrative Rules and
Regulations, and to Repeal
and Reenact § 14102 of Chapter 14, Division 4, Title 8, Guam Administrative
Rules and
Regulations, Relative to the Guam Invasive Species Inspection Fee and
its Assessment.

If
you are interested in participating in the Virtual Public Hearing to provide
 testimony, please contact the Office of
Senator Clynton E. Ridgell via
 electronic mail at egrajek@guamlegislature.org
 or (671) 475-4983 no later than
November 15, 2021 for further guidance.

--

The
Public Hearing will broadcast LIVE on local television (GTA Channel 21, Docomo
Channel 117/112.4) and stream
online via i Liheslaturan Guåhan’s live feed.
 Written testimonies may be sent via email at
egrajek@guamlegislature.org.

All
government activities, programs, and services are accessible for people with
disabilities in compliance with Title II
of the Americans with Disabilities Act
 (ADA). Should you or interested parties require assistance or special
accommodations to fully participate in this public hearing, please contact the
Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell at
(671) 475-4983 or via email at egrajek@guamlegislature.org.

-- 

Si Yu'os ma'åse',

Erin Marie Grajek - Office Manager

The Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell

238 Archbishop Flores St.
Suite 906

Hagåtña, GU 96910
671-475-4983

I Mina'trentai Sais na Liheslaturan Guåhan
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts
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3 attachments

2021-11-09 FIRST NOTICE of Public Hearing.pdf
178K

Bill No. 191-36 (COR).pdf

885K

Bill No. 194-36 (COR).pdf
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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator – 36th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, 
and the Arts 

238 Archbishop Flores St ∙ Suite 906 – DNA Building ∙ Hagåtña GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ∙ Fax: (671) 475-4768 

clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

November 9, 2021 

MEMORANDUM 

To: All Senators, Stakeholders, Media 

From: Senator Clynton E. Ridgell 

Re: FIRST NOTICE of Virtual Public Hearing: Wednesday – November 17, 2021 

The Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts 

will conduct a series of Virtual Public Hearings on Wednesday – November 17, 2021 at 9:00 am 

via Zoom Video Conference. 

The Committee will hear and accept testimony on the following items: 

Bill No. 191-36 (COR) An Act to Amend § 3402 of Article 4, Chapter 3, Division 1, Title 9, Guam 

Administrative Rules, Relative to Allowing Wild Deer to be Taken and Harbored as Livestock. 

Bill No. 194-36 (COR) An Act to Amend § 14101 of Chapter 14, Division 4, Title 8, Guam 

Administrative Rules and Regulations, and to Repeal and Reenact § 14102 of Chapter 14, Division 

4, Title 8, Guam Administrative Rules and Regulations, Relative to the Guam Invasive Species 

Inspection Fee and its Assessment. 

If you are interested in participating in the Virtual Public Hearing to provide testimony, please 

contact the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell via electronic mail at 

egrajek@guamlegislature.org or (671) 475-4983 no later than November 15, 2021 for further 

guidance. 

-- 

The Public Hearing will broadcast LIVE on local television (GTA Channel 21, Docomo Channel 

117/112.4) and stream online via i Liheslaturan Guåhan’s live feed. Written testimonies may be 

sent via email at egrajek@guamlegislature.org. 

All government activities, programs, and services are accessible for people with disabilities in 

compliance with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Should you or interested 

parties require assistance or special accommodations to fully participate in this public hearing, 

please contact the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell at (671) 475-4983 or via email at 

egrajek@guamlegislature.org. 

mailto:sen.cridgell@teleguam.net
https://www.guamlegislature.com/36th_Guam_Legislature/Bills_Introduced_36th/Bill%20No.%20191-36%20(COR).pdf
https://www.guamlegislature.com/36th_Guam_Legislature/Bills_Introduced_36th/Bill%20No.%20194-36%20(COR).pdf
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Erin M. Grajek <egrajek@guamlegislature.org>

SECOND NOTICE of Virtual Public Hearing
Erin M. Grajek <egrajek@guamlegislature.org> Mon, Nov 15, 2021 at 8:49 AM
Bcc: phnotice@guamlegislature.org

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

November 15, 2021

MEMORANDUM

To:   All Senators, Stakeholders, Media

From:   Senator Clynton E. Ridgell

Re:    SECOND NOTICE of Virtual Public Hearing: Wednesday – November 17, 2021

The Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts will conduct a series
of Virtual Public Hearings on Wednesday – November 17, 2021 at 9:00 am via Zoom Video Conference.

The Committee will hear and accept testimony on the following items:

Bill No. 191-36 (COR)  An Act to Amend § 3402 of Article 4, Chapter 3, Division 1, Title 9, Guam Administrative
Rules, Relative to Allowing Wild Deer to be Taken and Harbored as Livestock.

Bill No. 194-36 (COR) An Act to Amend § 14101 of Chapter 14, Division 4, Title 8, Guam Administrative Rules and
Regulations, and to Repeal and Reenact § 14102 of Chapter 14, Division 4, Title 8, Guam Administrative Rules and
Regulations, Relative to the Guam Invasive Species Inspection Fee and its Assessment.

If you are interested in participating in the Virtual Public Hearing to provide testimony, please contact the Office of
Senator Clynton E. Ridgell via electronic mail at  egrajek@guamlegislature.org  or (671) 475-4983 no later than
November 15, 2021 for further guidance.

--

The Public Hearing will broadcast LIVE on local television (GTA Channel 21, Docomo Channel 117/112.4) and stream
online via i Liheslaturan Guåhan’s live feed. Written testimonies may be sent via email
at egrajek@guamlegislature.org.

All government activities, programs, and services are accessible for people with disabilities in compliance with Title II
of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Should you or interested parties require assistance or special
accommodations to fully participate in this public hearing, please contact the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell at
(671) 475-4983 or via email at egrajek@guamlegislature.org.

-- 

Si Yu'os ma'åse',

Erin Marie Grajek - Office Manager

The Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell

238 Archbishop Flores St.
Suite 906

Hagåtña, GU 96910
671-475-4983

I Mina'trentai Sais na Liheslaturan Guåhan

https://www.guamlegislature.com/36th_Guam_Legislature/Bills_Introduced_36th/Bill%20No.%20191-36%20(COR).pdf
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Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts


3 attachments
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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator – 36th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, 
and the Arts 

238 Archbishop Flores St ∙ Suite 906 – DNA Building ∙ Hagåtña GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ∙ Fax: (671) 475-4768 

clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

November 15, 2021 

MEMORANDUM 

To: All Senators, Stakeholders, Media 

From: Senator Clynton E. Ridgell 

Re: SECOND NOTICE of Virtual Public Hearing: Wednesday – November 17, 2021 

The Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts 

will conduct a series of Virtual Public Hearings on Wednesday – November 17, 2021 at 9:00 am 

via Zoom Video Conference. 

The Committee will hear and accept testimony on the following items: 

Bill No. 191-36 (COR) An Act to Amend § 3402 of Article 4, Chapter 3, Division 1, Title 9, Guam 

Administrative Rules, Relative to Allowing Wild Deer to be Taken and Harbored as Livestock. 

Bill No. 194-36 (COR) An Act to Amend § 14101 of Chapter 14, Division 4, Title 8, Guam 

Administrative Rules and Regulations, and to Repeal and Reenact § 14102 of Chapter 14, Division 

4, Title 8, Guam Administrative Rules and Regulations, Relative to the Guam Invasive Species 

Inspection Fee and its Assessment. 

If you are interested in participating in the Virtual Public Hearing to provide testimony, please 

contact the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell via electronic mail at 

egrajek@guamlegislature.org or (671) 475-4983 no later than November 15, 2021 for further 

guidance. 

-- 

The Public Hearing will broadcast LIVE on local television (GTA Channel 21, Docomo Channel 

117/112.4) and stream online via i Liheslaturan Guåhan’s live feed. Written testimonies may be 

sent via email at egrajek@guamlegislature.org. 

All government activities, programs, and services are accessible for people with disabilities in 

compliance with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Should you or interested 

parties require assistance or special accommodations to fully participate in this public hearing, 

please contact the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell at (671) 475-4983 or via email at 

egrajek@guamlegislature.org. 

mailto:sen.cridgell@teleguam.net
https://www.guamlegislature.com/36th_Guam_Legislature/Bills_Introduced_36th/Bill%20No.%20191-36%20(COR).pdf
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Erin M. Grajek <egrajek@guamlegislature.org>

A letter from Senator Clynton E. Ridgell
Erin M. Grajek <egrajek@guamlegislature.org> Tue, Nov 9, 2021 at 9:40 AM
To: Chelsa Muna-Brecht <Chelsa.MunaBrecht@doag.guam.gov>

Håfa adai:

Please see the attached notice from Senator Clynton E. Ridgell. Kindly confirm receipt of this email and please let me
know if you have any questions or concerns.


-- 

Si Yu'os ma'åse',

Erin Marie Grajek - Office Manager

The Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell

238 Archbishop Flores St.
Suite 906

Hagåtña, GU 96910
671-475-4983

I Mina'trentai Sais na Liheslaturan Guåhan
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts
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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator – 36th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, 
and the Arts 

238 Archbishop Flores St ∙ Suite 906 – DNA Building ∙ Hagåtña GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ∙ Fax: (671) 475-4768 

clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org 

November 9, 2021 

Transmitted via Electronic mail 

chelsa.munabrecht@agriculture.guam.gov 

Ms. Chelsa Muña-Brecht 

Director 

Department of Agriculture 

163 Dairy Road 

Mangilao, Guam 96913 

Håfa adai Ms. Muña-Brecht: 

This is to notify you that the Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and 

Energy Utilities, and the Arts has scheduled a virtual public hearing on Bill No. 191-36 (COR) – 

Clynton E. Ridgell - An Act to Amend § 3402 Of Article 4, Chapter 3, Division 1, Title 9, Guam 

Administrative Rules, Relative To Allowing Wild Deer To Be Taken And Harbored As Livestock. 

The Virtual Public Hearing is scheduled for Wednesday – November 17, 2021 at 9:00 am via 

Zoom Video Conference.  

The Committee requests that you attend the virtual public hearing to present testimony on the bill, 

and you are welcome to invite other members of your team who will provide valuable input on the 

intent of the bill. Please contact Ms. Erin Grajek at the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell via 

electronic mail at egrajek@guamlegislature.org or (671) 475-4983 no later than November 15, 

2021 for further guidance or visit http://guamlegislature.com/index/virtual-hearings/ for 

instructions.  

Statements may be submitted via email at egrajek@guamlegislature.org. Please submit written 

statements at least two days prior to the date of the hearing.  

If you have any questions or concerns, please call our office at 475-4983 or send email to 

egrajek@guamlegislature.org. 

Si Yu’os ma’åse’, 

Clynton E. Ridgell 

mailto:sen.cridgell@teleguam.net
https://www.guamlegislature.com/36th_Guam_Legislature/Bills_Introduced_36th/Bill%20No.%20191-36%20(COR).pdf


Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator – 36th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, 
and the Arts 

Virtual Public Hearing – via Zoom Video Conference 

Wednesday, November 17, 2021

9:00 am  

AGENDA 

9:00 am: The Committee will hear and accept testimony on the following items:

Bill No. 191-36 (COR) - Clynton E. Ridgell - An Act to Amend § 3402 of Article 
4, Chapter 3, Division 1, Title 9, Guam Administrative Rules, Relative to Allowing 
Wild Deer to be Taken and Harbored as Livestock.

Bill No. 194-36 (COR) - Clynton E. Ridgell - An Act to Amend § 14101 of 
Chapter 14, Division 4, Title 8, Guam Administrative Rules and Regulations, and 
to Repeal and Reenact § 14102 of Chapter 14, Division 4, Title 8, Guam 
Administrative Rules and Regulations, Relative to the Guam Invasive Species 
Inspection Fee and its Assessment.

-- 

Individuals who wish to participate in the virtual public hearing to provide testimony should 

contact Ms. Erin M. Grajek at the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell via email at 

egrajek@guamlegislature.org or at (671) 475-4983 for further information and guidance. Written 

testimonies may be submitted via email to egrajek@guamlegislature.org; mailed to our office at 

238 Archbishop Flores Street, Suite 906, Hagåtña, Guam 96910; or sent by fax at (671) 

475-4768.

The Public Hearing will broadcast LIVE on local television (GTA Channel 21, Docomo Channel 

112.4) and stream online via i Liheslaturan Guåhan’s YouTube live feed. All government 

activities, programs, and services are accessible for people with disabilities in compliance with 

Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Should you or interested parties require 

assistance or special accommodations to fully participate in this public hearing, please contact 

Ms. Erin M. Grajek at the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell at (671) 475-4983 or via 

email at egrajek@guamlegislature.org. 

238 Archbishop Flores St ∙ Suite 906 – DNA Building ∙ Hagåtña GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ∙ Fax: (671) 475-4768 

clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org 

mailto:clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org
https://www.guamlegislature.com/36th_Guam_Legislature/Bills_Introduced_36th/Bill%20No.%2066-36%20(COR)%20As%20amended%20by%20the%20Committee.pdf


Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator – 36th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts 

238 Archbishop Flores St ∙ Suite 906 – DNA Building ∙ Hagåtña GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ∙ Fax: (671) 475-4768 

clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org 

VIRTUAL PUBLIC HEARING SIGN-IN SHEET 

Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts 

Wednesday – November 17, 2021 • 9:00 am 

Zoom Video Conference 

 Bill No. 191-36 (COR) - Clynton E. Ridgell - An Act to Amend § 3402 of Article 4, Chapter 3, Division 1, Title 9, Guam 

Administrative Rules, Relative to Allowing Wild Deer to be Taken and Harbored as Livestock. 

NAME 

AGENCY/ 

ORGANIZATION POSITION TESTIMONY 

CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

1. Chelsa Muña-Brecht, Director Guam Dept. of Agriculture 
SUPPORT ☐ 

OPPOSE ☐ 

WRITTEN ☐ 

ORAL ☐ Chelsa.MunaBrecht@doag.guam.gov 

2. Chris Rosario

Biosecurity Division, 

Guam Dept. of Agriculture 
SUPPORT ☐ 

OPPOSE ☐ 
WRITTEN ☐ 

ORAL ☐ chrisrosarioc1640@gmail.com 

3. John Borja, Division Chief
Agricultural Development 

Division, Dept. of Agriculture 

SUPPORT ☐ 

OPPOSE ☐ 

WRITTEN ☐ 

ORAL ☐ John.Borja@doag.guam.gov 

4. Jathan Muña-Barnes Dept. of Agriculture 
SUPPORT ☐ 

OPPOSE ☐ 

WRITTEN ☐ 

ORAL ☐ 

5. Tom Nadeau, Chief Environmental Health

Officer

Div. of Environmental 

Health, DPHSS 
SUPPORT ☐ 

OPPOSE ☐ 

WRITTEN ☐ 

ORAL ☐ Masatomo.Nadeau@dphss.guam.gov 

6. 

SUPPORT ☐ 

OPPOSE ☐ 

WRITTEN ☐ 

ORAL ☐ 

7. 
SUPPORT ☐ 

OPPOSE ☐ 

WRITTEN ☐ 

ORAL ☐ 

8. 
SUPPORT ☐ 

OPPOSE ☐ 

WRITTEN ☐ 

ORAL ☐ 

9. 
SUPPORT ☐ 

OPPOSE ☐ 

WRITTEN ☐ 

ORAL ☐ 

Page of 1 1
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Clynt Ridgell <clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org>

Deer law addition and changes


Theodore Nelson Wed, Nov 17, 2021 at 8:55 AM
To: Clynt Ridgell <clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org>

Sir i support your changes to simplify our current deer raising laws. I repectfully requesting that deers be only allowed
to be raised on A zone properties and cage sizes be no less than 20ft.x30ft .
Ted Nelson
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Senator Clynt Ridgell 
Chairperson, Committee on Economic Development,  
Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts 
238 Archbishop Flores St. Suite 906 
DNA Building 
Hagatña, Guam 96910 
 
Hafa Adai Senator Ridgell, 
 
Thank you for providing us with the opportunity to provide testimony for Bill No. 191-36 
(COR): 

AN ACT TO AMEND § 3402 OF ARTICLE 4, CHAPTER 
3, DIVISION 1, TITLE 9, GUAM ADMINISTRATIVE 
RULES, RELATIVE TO ALLOWING WILD DEER TO 
BE TAKEN AND HARBORED AS LIVESTOCK. 
 

Recognizing the vital role agriculture plays in our lives, this bill helps move our community 
that much closer to supporting this critical industry by expanding the potential for a vibrant 
livestock economy.   Deer…binadu…have a long history and presence on our island.  Once, 
and technically still, considered an invasive species, our agency is now working on 
approaching deer from the perspective of game management.  Another aspect, one this 
legislation directly addresses, is that deer taken from Guam’s jungles may be raised as 
livestock.  This is where game management and agriculture industry will overlap.  
 
Sustainability, restorative agriculture, and food security are concepts we are using to usher in 
Guam’s agricultural renaissance.  All of this is made possible by efforts such as this.  This bill 
helps our agency provide support, rather than penalties, to those who seek to make deer a 
mainstay food source for our island.   
 
This bill also brings attention and support to the intersecting of our Animal Control section 
and our Agriculture Development Services section.  Animal Control is responsible for 
inspecting and ensuring livestock are managed and raised in humane, sanitary conditions.  
There is no doubt that the growth in this industry will highlight the much needed expanded 
support necessary to strengthen both sections.  
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The Department of Agriculture fully supports Bill 191-36.  This bill will be an ideal support to 
both hunters and livestock ranchers. 
 
      Saina Ma’ase’, 
 
 
 
      Chelsa Muna-Brecht    
      Director 



Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator – 36th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, 
and the Arts 

238 Archbishop Flores St ∙ Suite 906 – DNA Building ∙ Hagåtña GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ∙ Fax: (671) 475-4768 

clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org 

COMMITTEE REPORT DIGEST 

I. OVERVIEW

Bill No. 191-36 (COR) was introduced on September 9th, 2021 by Senator Clynton E.

Ridgell and was subsequently referred by the Committee on Rules to the Committee on

Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the Arts on

September 14th, 2021.

The Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and

the Arts convened a virtual public hearing on Bill No. 191-36 (COR) on November

17, 2021 at 9:00 am via Zoom Video Conference.

Public Notice Requirements

Public Hearing notices were disseminated via email to all senators and all main media

broadcasting outlets on Tuesday, November 9, 2021 (5-Day Notice) and again on

Monday, November 15, 2021 (48-Hour Notice).

Senators Present

Senator Clynton E. Ridgell, Chairperson

Senator V. Anthony “Tony” Ada

Senator Joanne M. Brown

Senator Christopher M. Duenas

Senator Telo T. Taitague

Written Testimonies and Communications Received from the Following

Stakeholders:

Muña-Brecht, Chelsa, Director – Guam Department of Agriculture

San Agustin, Arthur, Director/Thomas Nadeau, Chief Environmental Public Health

Officer – Department of Public Health and Social Services

Nelson, Theodore

II. SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY & DISCUSSION

The Public Hearing was Called to Order at 9:00 am.

Chairman, Senator Clynton E. Ridgell: Håfa adai and good morning. This virtual public hearing 

conducted by the Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, 

and the Arts is called to order at 9:00 am. 

mailto:clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org


 

Notice of the hearing was disseminated to all local media outlets on November 9, 2021, with the 

second notice provided on November 15, 2021. Notice of the hearing was also made known on the 

Guam Legislature’s website. 

This morning, the Committee will hear testimony on Bill No. 191–36 (COR), An Act to Amend § 

3402 of Article 4, Chapter 3, Division 1, Title 9, Guam Administrative Rules, Relative to Allowing 

Wild Deer to be Taken and Harbored as Livestock, a bill that I introduced. 

Upon conclusion of Bill No. 191-36 (COR), we will take a 5-minute recess before we hear 

testimony on Bill No. 194-36 (COR), An Act to Amend § 14101 of Chapter 14, Division 4, Title 

8, Guam Administrative Rules and Regulations, and to Repeal and Reenact § 14102 of Chapter 

14, Division 4, Title 8, Guam Administrative Rules and Regulations, Relative to the Guam 

Invasive Species Inspection Fee and its Assessment, a bill I also introduced. 

Before we proceed with hearing testimonies, I would like to provide the panel of participants with 

some general rules of conduct for this virtual public hearing. All participants must abide by the 

rules of conduct and quality assurance standards including: The Chair will invite individuals who 

have signed up to testify. Individuals testifying shall first be recognized by the Chair before 

speaking and shall state their name, title, and organization for record purposes. Please ensure that 

you are unmuted and that you are speaking clearly into your microphone. For group settings where 

more than one individual is present, please state your name before providing comment. From 

among the panel of senators, each member will be allowed to pose one question to an individual 

testifying for one round and be provided another round if necessary. Questions and testimony shall 

be confirmed to the substance or nature of the agenda. Personal inference to the character or motive 

of any senator or any individual testifying is not permitted. Any violations of this rule of conduct 

will result in removal from the meeting room by the host. 

I would, now, like to welcome my colleagues who have joined us this morning. Senators Tony 

Ada, Chris Duenas, Joanne Brown and Telo Taitague. Thank you and good morning. And thank 

you for joining us. 

We now proceed with discussions on Bill No. 191-36 (COR) and I will begin with my opening 

statements on the measure. 

Bill No. 191-36 (COR) allows wild deer to be taken and harbored as livestock. At the moment, 

currently, Guam’s laws do not allow wild deer to be removed from the jungle while at the same 

time, it is legal under Guam law to raise deer fawn as pets. This bill will close this ambiguous gray 

area and definitively allow hunters and farmers to harbor wild deer fawns. This will create a new 

option to explore in providing food and stimulating our economy.  

I believe the bill will work well together with the slaughterhouse bill. I imagine a time when 

locally-raised deer meat can be sold in Guam stores or sold to restaurants will be able to serve 

local dishes like kadun binadu or even kelaguen binadu. I ask my colleagues to support this 

measure. 

Again, I think this just clears up some of the ambiguity in the law. The law currently allows deer 

to be harbored as pets, which I also think is a problem. I think it’s better to change it so that they’ll 



 

be classified as livestock as opposed to pets and the law does not allow people to take wild deer 

from the jungle but somehow allows people to raise wild deer as pets. So what the bill looks to do 

is allow people to take wild deer from the jungle and raise them as livestock. 

So with that I’d like to hear testimony from those who’ve joined us, today, and I’ll call on 

participants based on how their names appear in the sign-in sheet beginning with --- and before I 

continue, I’d also like to thank the Director of the Department of Agriculture, Chelsa Muña-Brecht. 

She is actually the one --- her and her agency brought this to my attention and asked me to work 

on this legislation and actually, basically, this legislation was Director Brecht and her agency’s 

idea. This is something they mentioned to that that was not clear in the law and didn’t make sense 

so they came up with something I think is a good solution and so I’d like to thank Director Brecht 

--- Muña-Brecht --- and allow her the opportunity to provide testimony on this measure at this 

time. Please unmute. 

Chelsa Muña-Brecht, Director – Guam Department of Agriculture: Hi, håfa adai! Can 

everyone hear me? Si Yu’os ma’åse,’ Senator Ridgell. It’s really nice to see all of you and growing 

fond of the repeat senators who come to all of our public hearings. It’s been a joy having you guys. 

You ask great questions and have always provided support each time we have a public hearing so 

thank you for providing us with the opportunity to provide testimony for Bill No. 191-36. 

 

[Written testimony provided orally] 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you, Director Muña-Brecht for your testimony this morning. Next on 

the sign-in sheet is Mr. Chris Rosario. Please make sure to unmute. You may begin. 

 

Christopher Rosario – Biosecurity Division, Guam Department of Agriculture: Good 

morning, senators. Again, it’s nice to see you all today. I would like to provide support in the Bill 

191. Sorry, I’m still trying to learn these bills and I just feel that considering getting rid of all the 

ambiguities of the current law does, I think, with this introduction will kind of give a much clearer 

picture for it. So yeah, in that sense, I do support this bill. 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you, Mr. Rosario. Mr. John Borja, Department of Agriculture, 

Agriculture Development Division. 

 

John Borja, Division Chief – Agricultural Development Division, Guam Department of 

Agriculture: Good morning, Senator Chairman Clynton Ridgell. Thank you, again, for this 

opportunity for me to provide a testimony. My name, for the record, is John C. Borja and I am in 

support of the Bill No. 191-36. I wrote a one-page testimonial and I would like to read it. Basically, 

I was raised and thought of ways of the land providing for family, relatives, friends, and individuals 

who are unable to provide for themselves, such as the elderly and those who are fiscally challenge 

in obtaining basic needs for food resources that may be from fishing, hunting, farming and organic 

fruits and other edible vegetation, cultivated or otherwise to include plant materials for medicinal 

purposes that can only be obtained in the jungle, coastal, marine areas, rives and or in the wild. 

The struggles, in the past, may be farm field providing food resources for the most part, majority 

of the animal protein was obtained through raising of cattle, swine, goats and poultry, obtaining 

venison was either hunting for deer in the wild and oftentimes, it was not an easy task altogether. 



 

One has to be very skillful and experience in the take of game, especially the harvesting of deer. 

It took a lot of effort, time and consuming time in trying to consider all costs to provide venison 

on the table for many traditional dishes. And for the years of fiscal stamina and challenge, the 

pursuit of game, now, as the years in obtaining deer as a food source has become more challenging 

and quite arduous and the harvest is far and few in obtaining. The raising of deer as livestock 

would be more focused, resourceful and a practice that will be more overly guarantees a food 

source that is inexpensive and, most importantly, harvested as needed. Obtaining and raising deer 

as a lifestyle for the purpose of food source as an alternative to swine, cattle, goat, will add to the 

list of commodities that would be a sustainable food item for the island and for the industry, itself, 

to grow as a livestock, is very potential for a high commodity in the advent of a slaughterhouse 

and maybe a commercial commodity in itself. Therefore, again, I am in full support of this bill and 

thank you Senator Ridgell for having afforded me this opportunity and especially my views. Thank 

you. 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you, Mr. Borja, for your testimony. I also have a Mr. Pete Terlaje. Are 

you here to provide testimony? If not, we’ll move on to Jathan Muña-Barnes. 

 

Jathan Muña-Barnes: Thank you for having me and si Yu’os ma’åse’, members of the 

Committee. I am Jathan Muña-Barnes. I’m here, today, as a private citizen in full support of this 

bill relative to allowing wild deer to be taken and harbored as livestock. As a hunter, myself, I’ve 

encountered orphaned calves while hunting that would otherwise not survive without additional 

care. But I remain hesitant to capture it unsure of whether it was legal or not. As a hunter, again, 

I’m a current livestock producer. My immediate family and I rely on deer meat as a source of food. 

At least a couple times a week, easier access to deer meat through livestock production would 

alleviate some of my grocery expenses and meat expenses. I agree that by clarifying this gray area 

would encourage more hunters and farmers to raise deer as livestock which would, in return, 

bolster game food security and food sovereignty efforts. Thank you, senator. 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you, Jathan. Next we have Tom Nadeau, Department of Public Health 

and Social Services, Environmental Health. 

 

Tom Nadeau – Division of Environmental Health, Department of Public Health and Social 

Services: Thank you, Senator. I will be presenting on behalf of our director, Mr. Arthur San 

Agustin, so thank you very much. 

 

[Written testimony presented orally] 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you, Mr. Nadeau, for your testimony this morning. Okay, that is 

everyone who has signed up to testify, I don’t believe I see anyone else online, right now, that 

looks like they’re here to testify. I think we’ve heard from everyone so at this point I will open it 

up for my colleagues and allow them the opportunity to ask questions beginning with Senator Ada. 

 

Senator Telo T. Taitague: Mr. Chair, before we get started, could I request that Tom, you provide 

us the testimony on the chat? We don’t have --- I don’t have a copy of it. I’d like to see it. 

 



 

Mr. Nadeau: Yes, thank you, Senator. I just see your chat. I’m not familiar how to do it but I’ll 

figure it out while we’re having discussion but I did forward a copy to the Chairperson’s Senator 

Clynt Ridgell’s office email, this morning. So, Senator, that’s also in your email box. 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you, Senator Ada. 

 

Senator V. Anthony Ada: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Perhaps the Director can answer this 

question. I just have a question on the GARR . So, you know, currently when a rule that is codified 

in the GARR is amended through the enactment of public law as proposed in this bill, does that 

prevent the agencies from the triple-a process from amending the rule, again, in the future. Because 

currently the agencies can add, delete or amend GARR via the triple-a process but the agencies 

can’t amend public law.  

 

Director Muña-Brecht: I don’t believe that bars us from doing that. Although I would defer to 

maybe legislative council or the attorney general’s office but what we did at the time was met with 

all of our section chiefs and we went through each section, laws and regulations and identified 

what were those that needed the most immediate attention and changing and then we presented 

them to our oversight chair at one time. So I think what happened from that, after, is that he 

introduced several pieces of legislation at one time to kind of address all of the issues our agency 

needed to update.  

 

Senator Ada: So they don’t believe that this would affect amending the GARR in the future? 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Senator Ada, I don’t think it will because, technically, what this bill is doing 

is amending the GARR. So I think the GARR is still amendable from other legislation in the future 

or even through the triple-a process. But I will ask that question of our legal counsel to ensure that 

you get the correct answer. But it’s my understanding that we can amend the GARR and that’s 

specifically what this bill is doing. It’s amending a section of the GARR and then it can still be 

amended through the regular triple-a process in the future and could be amended, again, through 

the legislative process as well in the future. So my understanding is it can be amended either way. 

But I will double check to make sure. 

 

Senator Ada: Okay, thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to make sure that we’re not hampering the 

agency’s ability to amend the GARR if this is qualified to public law versus the administrative 

rules. 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Yeah, understood and I agree. I have the same concern. I wouldn’t want to do 

that, either, and hamper any agency’s ability to amend their rules and regulations through the triple-

a process. Thank you, Senator Ada. Anything else you would like to add? 

 

Senator Ada: That’s it, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much. Thank you Madam Director. 

 

Director Muña-Brecht: Thank you, Senator Ada. 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you, Senator Ada. Senator Duenas? 

 



 

Senator Christopher M. Dueñas: Si Yu’os ma’åse’, Mr. Chairman and thank you to the Director 

for being here as well as the other support staff, as well as Public Health. Chairman, I think this is 

an excellent idea. It seems as though there is some development that is still required so I’d like to 

work with the Committee going forward. I think that, certainly, the regulatory issues discussed, I 

would just recommend that maybe we go from this public hearing to at least one round table to 

assemble everyone because it just seems like working through the technical process without having 

to deal with that on the floor, we’d probably be bringing them in, anyways, and I just think that 

it’s a great idea that just needs a little bit more structure, under my opinion. But I do agree with 

your opening that, first of all, as a food source as we look to trying to become a healthier Guam, 

we know that binådu is a very lean meat and is very healthy, by and large depending on what we 

put un when we cook it but other than that in its rough form, it really is a very healthy protein. I 

think it’s excellent to develop that also as we look towards resumption of tourism, I think that this 

becomes another unique delicacy for Guam, that if it’s readily available to the hotels and the 

restaurants as they develop their diversification of their menu, it brings something unique to Guam, 

again, as an experience for us locals that’s CHamorus and just the general population of Guam, 

we’ve cherished this delicacy for generations but to be able to now, if under the possibility of 

larger production, you know introduce it through a USDA or through a process that allows it for 

commercial sale, I think that’s something that’s really can become unique to Guam and the 

experience of our guests, I think the chefs will just have a wonderful time with this really nice 

protein. So in that regard, Mr. Chairman, I support this idea. I just recommend that we develop it 

a little bit more through the regulatory process in the public domain before we bring it to the floor, 

that’s just my recommendation. Once again, to the team and especially under your consideration, 

Tom, to use mostly for coming forward and giving us some guidance on how to develop this 

framework, thank you very much. 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you, Senator Dueñas, for your comments and yes, that’s exactly what 

I’m thinking, another thing for tourists or anyone else, just to add in there. There was a local 

restaurant on Guam for a while that was selling deer dishes and what I found out was they were 

importing the deer meat from Hawaii because we don’t have the means of doing it here. And I just 

thought that’s such a shame, in a way, because we’ve got a lot of deer and there’s hunters here and 

there’s people willing to raise deer on their ranch if they could sell it to these shops. They’d be 

able to sell local deer meat instead of having to import it from off island. I’m sorry, Chelsa, did 

you have something you wanted to add? 

 

Director Muña-Brecht: Yes, since you mentioned that, I wanted to add that since they started 

utilizing their mobile slaughterhouses in Hawaii, the deer for them has become the largest livestock 

industry for them. 

 

Chairman Ridgell: Oh, wow. See, that’s something I did not know. Thank you for sharing that, 

Director. I’d like to move on, now, to Senator Joanne Brown. 

 

Senator Joanne M. Brown: Thank you very much Mr. Chair. I did want to inquire because I see 

the change in the language here is literally from going from no deer from not being able to harbor 

deer in captivity to literally being able to harbor deer with regards to now classifying them as 

livestock, and so I just want to get a clarification on this big jump because it's obviously polar 

opposites from what is, what exists now to what's being proposed and what has what is-- what has 



 

brought this change about I think so we can get greater enlightenment-- the public can have a 

greater understanding because not obviously everyone is aware of this so I think Mr. Chair we can 

allow-- get some additional information-- elaborate on why this significant change is being 

proposed at this time.  

Director Muña-Brecht: Senator Brown thank you for the question, I’m actually kind of giggling 

to myself because the initial impetus for seeing this needed change was the fact that even as we 

sat here at the table discussing regulations and then when I went out with Mr. Borja to do just farm 

visits to-- so that I could introduce myself to a lot of our farmers and we met those who were 

raising livestock of different kinds we see that people are doing it anyway and it's technically 

against the law and I know a few people as well who would bring deer out of the jungle and raise 

them as pets or eventually as meat for their family and when I realized that what they were doing 

was against the law I saw that the-- what the law needed to do was adjust to fit the situations that 

already exist on island rather than penalizing these people for something that at this point I didn't 

see that what they were doing was wrong we should address the law to fit that situation and then 

saw the potential for a livestock industry based off of the deer that are already there and then 

another aspect is that for decades technically deer have been at least by this agency considered an 

invasive species. They're not native to the island and they do cause a substantial amount of damage 

in our jungles and to farms. That's what was the initiation or that's what started the depredation 

permits. Tt wasn't for pig it was for deer that were damaging farmers crops so that's why in our 

legislatio-- our testimony we were saying that game management now needs to be tied to this 

potential livestock industry so that we can manage it better for our natural resources.  

Chairman Ridgell: And if I could just— 

Senator Brown: Out of curiosity I just wanted to ask so what led to the initial you know banning 

of it do we know what-- I mean because for example we can domesticate and have our   carabao 

care about for example right to have as pets or…  

Director Muña-Brecht: I don't know and there's so many weird… 

Senator Brown: It seems kind of unusual that's why I’m kind of curious how-- you know 

specifically to prohibit or even to prohibit it for having it as a pet. I mean I don't have a deer for a 

pet but I’m just curious as to why that was a prohibition if-- you know if you want to have a goat 

you might-- you know people might have it for agricultural purposes, but others may simply have 

a goat for a pet as well. So, I’m just kind of curious as to why specifically was there a restriction 

on deer?  

Chairman Ridgell: Well, I’d like to add something. My understanding is the way it's currently 

written it's weird it says no Guam deer may be taken from the wild for the purpose of harboring 

them in captivity as pets. Then it says only those Guam deer currently held in captivity or the 

progeny of any registered deer may be harbored as pets. So, I guess at one point if you already had 

deer I guess you could breed them and keep them as pets technically and so what we're looking to 

do is clarify and say number one they shouldn't be kept as pets necessarily they should be kept as 

livestock and then that would subject them to other you know sort of regulations similar to what 

Mr. Nadeau brought up about regulations with regards to livestock. So, you know— 



 

Senator Brown: --But out curiosity Senator Clynt I mean what if I wanted to keep a deer as a pet 

what would be the concern or restriction? I mean if I can have a carabao in my yard why can't I 

have a deer? I’m just asking because it's a practical question you know why couldn't I have a deer 

if I wanted to keep a deer for a pet if I had the property to have a pet deer that I was not using for 

consumption?  

Chairman Ridgell: That's a good point I think  

Senator Brown: Not that I’m aware a lot of people have pet deers at home but I’m just kind of 

curious as to why.  

Chairman Ridgell: I think the logic is usually for most jurisdictions they don't recommend 

harboring wild animals, they're considered wild as pets usually they have to get a special permit 

you know just like in the states they had this thing the Tiger King I don't know if you saw this on 

Netflix  

Senator Brown: No, I’ve heard it but not seen it no.  

Director Muña-Brecht: You don't need to watch it.  

Senator Brown: Okay that's fine. 

Chairman Ridgell: But there's a whole thing too where they're able to get permits to harbor wild 

animals so they can have these little zoos and things of that nature but you're supposed to get 

special permits to have a wild animal and so I think previously you were allowed to because it says 

here Guam deer currently held in captivity, the progeny of any registered deer may be harbored as 

pets at the discretion of the director so I believe that was allowing the director of agriculture to sort 

of approve of a deer as a pet. So, I mean that's something we could look at keeping in there and 

say if you're going to harbor it as a pet you need to get some kind of permit or something from the 

director. That's something we could consider.  

Director Muña-Brecht: And senator tied to that is that if the qualifications for raising pets versus 

raising livestock in our Guam statute are different. So, if you're going to raise livestock you have 

to keep it within a certain-- the pen needs to be a certain size which is larger than what's required 

for pets.  

Senator Brown: Okay but do I need to get a permit to have a carabao? 

Director Muña-Brecht: No.  

Senator Brown: Do I need a permit to have a cow as a pet because I grew up with-- my grandfather 

had a cow that was really a pet. So, I mean are we required to get permits if we have cows or 

carabaos or…?  

Director Muña-Brecht: Not as pets but it would be subject-- which is it's-- currently now, 

technically, our animal control officer should be going down and inspecting to make sure that 

you're keeping it in conditions that are aligned with keeping livestock even if you chose to keep 

that as a pet just because those conditions are more aligned with what the-- how the animal would 

live and not so your carabao wouldn't be in a pen or a cage but rather in a large open area and so 



 

the same for deer because if you kept a deer as a pet that would require I guess the special permit 

because then the kennel required for pets is much smaller than for livestock.  

Senator Brown: No I appreciate the insight I’m just out of curiosity because like I said we're 

going from one extreme to the other and I just wanted clarification as to why that was the case and 

even why there would have been a prohibition I guess if you had a new deer you wanted to keep 

you couldn't if it wasn't progeny from one that was already in captivity so I just appreciate the 

clarification thank you so much Director Chelsea and certainly thank you Mr. Chairman.  

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you Senator Brown. Senator Taitague.  

Senator Taitague: Thank you Mr. Chair a lot of the questions I had were answered as well. I had 

a concern as well with the regarding the Triple-A-Process and prohibiting so I look forward to 

reviewing your findings on that as well. Excuse me. Thank you. My concern here-- you know well 

first you know the population in the north and versus the south on how much how much deer is in 

these two locations I was told that it's very abundant in the north and the south it's not so much. 

By allowing this type of livestock population or allowing the people to do this my concern is the 

damage that it may cause to the environment. There was a report that was put out I believe in 

maybe around 2017 on the management plan for hooved animals and this was done by the, I believe 

it was from the-- okay let me pull it up the joint region Marianas naval base and discussing the 

damages it was called environmentally.  

If we start doing something like this Chelsea that would you know increase the population of wild 

deer I mean deer in the wild and thus cause a lot of issues that are happening right now with the 

environment, the erosion the you know what's causing some of the issues with our water you know 

the-- so what is your take on if this starts happening that deer in the wild would start growing and 

then we're going to have some issues environmentally?  

Director Muña-Brecht: Well I haven't seen that management plan or the information revealed 

but what we've discerned from our own wildlife section is that there is an increase in the number 

of farmers seeking depredation permits both in the south and in the north because the deer are 

already causing damage to their farms but for those who raise them as livestock I think there's been 

one maybe two farmers and John can correct me but I remember talking about at least two farmers 

who were raising deer as livestock and they keep them corralled so they're not in the wild and I 

don't believe that having them raised as livestock would increase our wild population substantially 

and as I said we're also addressing them from the perspective of game management now which is 

why we're having activities like our first binadu hunt which is the first one ever held on the island. 

It's because and I kind of disagree with that finding that there's not a lot of deer down south I think 

Jason can attest to that as well as John. They have no problems in the time they go out hunting and 

the amount of time spent versus the time it takes to catch or shoot a deer. They're abundant in both 

areas of the island and we have already with just two days of safety briefings over sixty hunters 

ready to come out and participate in the derby. So, our island dramatically or drastically needs 

game management because of the damage already incurred and I think that allowing farmers or 

ranchers to raise deer as livestock would add to that management capacity for our island.  



 

Senator Taitague: Okay yeah maybe I should have made it clear people tend to want to hunt down 

south more so and thus the hunters you know I guess clearing up more deer that are down in in 

that area versus the north side of the island where they're very abundant especially on the military 

base and it does become more difficult to hunt on the military base than it is in our south area. Will 

department of the Department of Agriculture provide any specific rules or methods of capturing 

wild deer or stock and build up the livestock population and will there be any special permits to 

capture a wild deer to become livestock eventually?  

Director Muña-Brecht: Maybe that's something we can discuss with-- if we do have the round 

table discussion but at this time there is no special procedures proposed for capturing deer or wild 

deer for livestock.  

Senator Taitague: Okay so it's basically we're in the incubating stages here right now just trying 

to move forward on something like that. I do believe a round table will be very helpful to address 

some of the concerns and yeah— 

Director Muña-Brecht: Sorry maybe I actually-- it just occurred to me that there are methods 

discussed currently in GAR for how to trap wild animals because I know that there are those for 

wild pigs, so I think there is something in there already.  

Senator Taitague: Okay Chelsea I’ll also share with you the documentation I have on that, the 

draft management plan with regarding these kind of types of animals from carabao to pigs, wild 

pigs, and deer as well as a letter from the military discussing the ability to slaughter certain animals 

on military facilities so if it's good on the military facility it's good for Guam so I’ll share that with 

you so you can look that over and prepare for the round table.  

Director Muña-Brecht: Si Yu’os ma’åse’Senator.  

Senator Taitague: No worries, no worries, and that's it for now Mr. Chair I’ll wait for the second 

round.  

Chairman Ridgell: Okay thank you Senator Taitague, and I’d just like to add a little bit with 

regards to capturing the wild deer from the jungles etcetera, most of any wild deer that's captured 

from the jungles you see are going to be the baby deer or the fawn. No one is really capturing the 

full-grown deer and that's because you really can't capture and harbor a wild full-grown toru there's 

no way you're going to keep that guy in captivity. He's going to be too aggressive even the females 

it's going to be very difficult to keep a full grown to even catch a full-grown deer. It's possible but 

it's difficult to catch a full-grown deer so usually it's when they're encountering orphaned fawns or 

orphaned baby deer that, to be frank a lot of times because a hunter shot Bambi’s mom you know 

and so someone finds Bambi and brings Bambi home.  

So that's typically how it happens but technically that's not even allowed under the current GARR 

you're not allowed to take any wild deer. So what we're doing is allowing it and just clarifying that 

because like again as I was stating the GAR is kind of con-- not contradicted but it was kind of 

troublesome in that you're not allowed to take a wild fawn from the jungle but you are allowed to 

have it as a pet if you've already had it since ever since and if it's, if you can say you've been 

breeding deer and this is the progeny of your of your deer you've been breeding you know. I guess 



 

that's kind of the gray area where people have been harboring deers, I don't think anyone's really 

checking them to see you know how did you get this deer. Right? So, this the idea with this is to 

just clarify this so there's no need to check how did you get the deer, if you have it as long as you're 

following all the livestock regulation requirements and keeping the deer in the proper way and 

managing it properly then then you'll be fine. So that's basically what we're looking to do with this 

bill.  

So, with that I’d like to ask any of my other colleagues if they have any other questions. Senator 

Ada anything else you'd like to add? Senator Duenas? Senator Brown? Senator Taitague, anything 

else you would like to add?  

Senator Taitague: Thank you Mr. Chair I just sent you the email Chelsea so you can look at that. 

There is one other question I did have. Okay, no, it was asked earlier. Okay thank you Mr. Chair, 

thank you.  

Chairman Ridgell: Great thank you Senator Taitague. Is there anything else anyone else would 

like to add that's here to testify? If not, I can go ahead and just close on this measure.  

I want to thank everyone for coming and providing testimony thank you Mr. Nadeau you did raise 

some valid points that I want to delve into further and ensure that we do this properly and thank 

you for some of the comments that perhaps we should hold a round table or something else to flesh 

us out further to ensure that we're doing this properly and so this livestock can be managed 

properly. Again, the main reason for this bill, this was something that was brought to my attention 

from director Chelsa Muna-Brecht is as something that's currently in the GAR that seems to be in 

conflict that people are allowed to have dear as pets but not allowed to take them from the jungle 

also, they probably should not be held as pets because there's different requirements if it's a pet 

versus livestock. They should be held instead as livestock and it's something that I think you know 

I think if I can add another reason why the term pets is troublesome is because technically you 

know you can have a pet in small residential areas or you can have a pet in an apartment you know 

but you can't, you shouldn't be allowed to have deer in an apartment or a complex or something 

along those lines in a residential area. Similar to that they should be in areas that are designated 

for livestock because these are big animals and they are wild animals but I do believe that if we do 

this right we can definitely develop you know even just a small industry, cottage industry, whatever 

you want to call it something so that locals can start selling local deer meat that they're raising here 

on Guam and sell it in the stores and sell them to restaurants and just like senator Duenas was 

saying absolutely I have that vision where we could have tourists come to Guam and they want to 

try the local deer meat here on Guam because it's something they heard about from their friends 

who came to visit Guam. You know their friends posted it to Instagram or Facebook oh look at 

this local fresh deer soup that we ate in Guam it's really good that word of mouth spreads especially 

via social media. This is something that could definitely entice tourists as another added unique 

feature of visiting the island of Guam and also for our locals as well. Locals who aren't able to 

hunt anymore maybe some of the Manåmko' you know a lot of times when uncle are the ones 

asking the younger guys you know boy can you save me fan some save me one petna another, but 

you know now they might be able to just go to the restaurant and buy some kadun binadu if their 

nephew didn't catch that weekend or whatever it is.  



 

So, you know with that-- Senator Taitague you had something you wanted…?  

Senator Taitague: Thank you Mr. Chair I’m so sorry I remember what it was it's regarding if 

we're going to have the round table to invite the military as well because the military from what I 

gather they do hunt this deer within their own selves you know. It’s not local individuals. You hear 

of armed service men go you know they hunt on the military base, and they also cooled the deer 

as well on base you know slaughter it on base and there's nothing prohibiting them from 

slaughtering deer on the base nor carabao as well. The letter that I sent you Chelsea will be in there 

so please let's incorporate the military too as well when we have this round table and get involved 

with them beforehand to find out how they're able to cull the deer after hunting. 

Chairman Ridgell: Yes, thanks Senator Taitague I’ve actually been in some discussion with 

Department of Agriculture about that. Currently the military does do culling programs on base. 

They also do allow a limited amount of local hunters to hunt on base basically the hunter has to 

fill out a bunch of paperwork, get the proper permits and a lot of times it's discouraging the local 

hunters they feel that the process isn't very accessible for them. I have heard from local hunters 

that feel that way. So that is something we I would definitely love to engage with the military and 

look to see if they can make the process more accessible for local hunters to be able to get the 

permits to hunt deer on base but they definitely do hire a private contractor to do most of their 

culling on base, that's another issue that I personally have issue with because it would be nice if 

they could hire local hunters or a local company made up of hunters, local hunters to go hunt on 

base but instead they you know spend this money flying in these guys and I’ve even heard and I 

heard this from military personnel that they even fly in a team of dogs that they use to hunt on 

base. So, they-- so imagine the military is paying to fly in a private contractor, all their personnel 

their equipment including cages, dogs, house all of them here. Probably pay-- you know the 

contract money is going to pay for their hotel stay everything else which I guess is good for the 

hotels and everything but you know even bringing their dogs in and I’ve heard from other hunters 

that technically Guam law --this was brought to my attention from other hunters I have not looked 

into it myself-- but some hunters are concerned, local hunters are concerned because technically 

Guam law doesn't allow you to hunt with dogs so it's kind of weird that you know I don't even 

know if the military is aware of that they're bringing in contractors that are hunting with dogs on 

base but our locals can't even technically use their dogs to go hunt deer or pig you know out in the 

in the local land space.  

So definitely this is something I do want to discuss with the military and see how we can improve 

the relationship between local hunters and the military and see if there's any way that we can allow 

for local hunters to do most of the culling practices on base instead of flying in a whole team from 

off island. It doesn't make sense to me especially when our local hunters know the terrain. They've 

been trained for generations upon generations passed down from their elders over hundreds of 

years to be honest the terrain of the land and specifically how to hunt specifically Guam’s deer 

which have adapted to the terrain after hundreds of years here in Guam. So that's definitely 

something I would love to incorporate with that I’d like to thank everyone for their participation 

today and I’ll definitely be looking at how we can further strengthen this bill and proof this bill 

and hopefully one day we can have local deer meat in our shelves at our local stores and in our 



local restaurants. So, thank you everyone for your participation this will conclude the hearing on 

Bill 191-36 (COR) we will recess for five minutes before we proceed with discussions on bill 

number 194. Thank you. 

[Testimony proceedings on Bill No. 194-36 (COR)] 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you Senator Duenas. Anyone else any comments or questions? If not, 

we will go ahead and wrap up this hearing and I’ll make some final comments just again. Thank 

you everyone for attending and for all of your testimony thank you for everyone who's worked 

with my office on this bill. Director Chelsa Muna-Brecht, Dr. Dulla and Mr. Thomas Hertslet thank 

you all very much for all of your work on this. Dr. Moore thank you as well, Chris Rosario thank 

you and to all my colleagues, thanks for attending and thanks for the questions and the dialogue 

with some very important dialogue that was brought up today. This is a very important issue. 

invasive species is like looking for a needle in a haystack. If you think about it sometimes, you're 

looking for a tiny bug in a huge container filled with all kinds of other items and just that one bug 

if it gets through and lays eggs sometimes can lead to the introduction of an invasive species and 

we've all-- Now the good news to me is at least I think the public is a lot more educated on invasive 

species. Certainly, ten years ago when Senator Duenas took this up it was starting to be talked 

about but not nearly as much as it is now because when Senator Duenas was doing it we didn't see 

as much of the destruction as we do now. Now you talk to anyone on Guam everyone knows what 

the coconut rhinoceros beetle is and what it does because everyone's had it affect their trees on 

their property just about. It's hard to find anyone who can say that they've never seen any of their 

trees if they have coconut trees in their property damaged and it's hard to find anyone that hasn't 

seen trees damaged by the rhino beetle. That's just one example but I think that's been a huge 

example that has really educated the public about the importance of defending against invasive 

species. So, I think it's time we definitely do everything we can to update and improve whatever 

policies we have in place with regards to the prevention of the importation of invasive species and 

I’d like to ask everyone to all work together. Let's work together and solve this problem and prevent 

invasive species from ruining our island and the few precious natural resources that we have.  

So, thank you everyone for your testimony and your help today the committee will continue to 

accept written statements on today's hearing within 10 business days from today which may be 

mailed to my office at 238 Archbishop Flores Street Suite 906 of the DNA building in Hagåtña. 

You may also send your statements to us at Clynt Ridgell at Guam legislature dot org I’ll spell that 

c-l-y-n-t-r-i-d-g-e-l-l at Guam legislature dot org, or you can send it by fax to 475-4768. Thank 
you all for your participation this virtual public hearing is adjourned it is 11:30 am thank you.

The Public Hearing was adjourned at 11:30 am. 

III. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee finds: 



• Guam is vulnerable to supply chain disruption and needs to develop alternative means of

providing food to its residents.

• Many Guam residents enjoy deer meat prepared in a number of dishes and styles.

• The harboring of deer as livestock requires compliance with regulations on maintaining a

safe and sanitary environment subject to regulatory control by Department of Public

Health and Social Services (DPHSS) and DoAG.

• Raising deer as livestock may require as much space as is recommended to house a large

dog.

The Committee recommends: 

• The raising of deer as livestock be further reviewed by the Department of Agriculture

(DoAG) as the lead agency involved with that activity.

• DoAG will be tasked, via this legislation, to ascertain the viability of raising deer as

livestock amongst local residents, to include the minimum space needed to maintain a

safe and sanitary environment, recommendations on where to allow such an activity, and

other factors necessary for the activity to proceed.

• The DoAG will prepare a report on its findings and transmit copies of the same to I

Maga’ Haga and I Liheslaturan Guåhan.

The Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Power and Energy Utilities, and the 
Arts hereby reports out Bill No. 191-36 (COR) As Amended by the Committee - Clynton E. 
Ridgell - "AN ACT TO AMEND § 3402 OF ARTICLE 4, CHAPTER 3, DIVISION 1, 
TITLE 9, GUAM ADMINISTRATIVE RULES AND REGULATIONS, RELATIVE TO 
ALLOWING WILD DEER TO BE TAKEN AND HARBORED AS LIVESTOCK," with the 
recommendation TO DO PASS.



I MINAʹTRENTAI SAIS NA LIHESLATURAN GUÅHAN 

2021 (FIRST) Regular Session 

Bill No. 

Introduced by: Clynton E. Ridgell 

AN ACT TO AMEND § 3402 OF ARTICLE 4, CHAPTER 3, 

DIVISION 1, TITLE 9, GUAM ADMINISTRATIVE 

RULES, RELATIVE TO ALLOWING WILD DEER TO BE 

TAKEN AND HARBORED AS LIVESTOCK. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF GUAM: 1 

Section 1. Legislative Findings and Intent. i Liheslaturan Guåhan finds 2 

that our local economy must diversify to give our community its greatest chance of 3 

economic prosperity and encourage less dependence on imported goods. Agriculture 4 

has long been a part of our local economy, from subsistence farming to local 5 

plantations. Raising livestock has been a practice in Guam for hundreds of years and 6 

even today is a growing form of agriculture locally. Enacting policies that facilitate 7 

this growth will not only be good for our local food supply but will also be good for 8 

the local economy.  9 

i Liheslaturan Guåhan further finds that deer, considered an invasive species, 10 

have since established a stable and ample population, enough to sustain the local 11 

hunting community.  Hunters at times encounter orphaned calves that are unlikely 12 

to survive without additional care but are unable to take them as it currently against 13 

Guam law for these calves to be removed from the jungle.  At the same time, it is 14 

also legal under Guam law to raise deer calves as livestock.  This creates an 15 

ambiguous gray area regarding how deer or calves may come to be livestock. 16 
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2 

Clarifying this discrepancy solidifies the legality of raising deer and will allow more 1 

people access to deer as livestock and a food source.  2 

 Therefore, it is the intent of i Liheslaturan Guåhan to effectuate this 3 

diversification by creating an ability for hunters and farmers to raise deer as 4 

livestock. By making this amendment, we provide a new option to explore in 5 

providing food and stimulating the economy of our local community.  6 

Section 2. § 3402 of Article 4, Chapter 3, Division 1, Title 9, Guam 7 

Administrative Rules and Regulations, is amended to read: 8 

“§ 3402. Taking of Deer. 9 

No Guam deer may be taken from the wild any person for the purpose of 10 

harboring them in captivity as pets livestock. Only those Guam deer currently held 11 

in captivity, or the progeny of any registered deer may be harbored as petslivestock. 12 

At the discretion of the Director, as provided in § 63124(b), Title 5, Guam Code 13 

Annotated, 5 GCA § 63124(b), deer may be harbored for other purposes, which 14 

include but are not limited to research and exhibition in zoos or as prescribed in § 15 

11310 of Chapter 11, Division 2, Article 3, Title 9, Guam Administrative Rules and 16 

Regulations.” 17 

Section 3. Effective Date. This Act shall be effective upon enactment. 18 

Section 4. Severability. If any provision of this Act or its application to any 19 

person or circumstance is found to be invalid or contrary to law, such invalidity shall 20 

not affect other provisions or applications of this Act that can be given effect without 21 

the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Act are 22 

severable. 23 
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plantations. Raising livestock has been a practice in Guam for hundreds of years and 6 
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Sinseru yan Minagåhet, 

Office of the Vice Speaker ● Tina Rose Muña Barnes
Committee on Rules
Committee on Public Accountability, Human Resource, Guam Buildup, Hagåtña Revitalization, 
Regional Affairs, Public Library, Telecommunications, and Technology

36th Guam Legislature
I Mina’trentai Sais na Liheslaturan Guåhan
Guam Congress Building | 163 Chalan Santo Papa | Hagåtña, GU 96910
senatormunabarnes@guamlegislature.org

On Thu, Sep 15, 2022 at 11:01 AM Clynt Ridgell <clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org> wrote:
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Clynt Ridgell <clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org>

URGENT REQUEST FOR E-VOTE: Bill No. 191-36 (COR)

Senator V. Anthony Ada <senatorvanthonyada@gmail.com> Thu, Sep 15, 2022 at 11:26 AM
To: Clynt Ridgell <clyntridgell@guamlegislature.org>
Cc: Vice Speaker Tina Rose Muña Barnes <senatormunabarnes@guamlegislature.org>, Senator Sabina Flores Perez
<office@senatorperez.org>, "Senator Joe S. San Agustin" <senatorjoessanagustin@gmail.com>, Senator Jose Terlaje
<senatorpedo@senatorjpterlaje.com>, "Senator Mary C. Torres" <senatormary@guamlegislature.org>, "Erin M. Grajek"
<egrajek@guamlegislature.org>, Keith Taliugyan <taliugyank@gmail.com>

To Report Out
[Quoted text hidden]

--

Office of Senator V. Anthony Ada
36th Guam Legislature

I Mina’trentai Sais Na Liheslaturan Guåhan
204 Hesler Place, Ada Plaza Center, Suite 202 & Suite 203
Hagatna, Guam  96910
Phone:  (671) 969-3555

Email:  senatorvanthonyada@gmail.com 

This e-mail message is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above and may contain confidential and privileged
information. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of the information contained in this
transmission  is  strictly  PROHIBITED.  If  you  have  received  this  transmission  in  error,  please  immediately  notify  us
by replying to senatorvanthonyada@gmail.com and delete the message immediately. Thank you very much.

Gumai pribilehu yan konfedensia este siha na mensåhi. Solo espesiåtmente para hågu ma entensioña pat ma aturisa para unrisibi. Sen
prubidu kumu ti un ma aturisa para manribisa, na’setbe, pat mandespåtcha. Yanggen lachi rinisibu-mu nu este na mensåhi , put fabot
ago’ guatu gi I numa’huyong gi as senatorvanthonyada@gmail.com  yan despues destrosa todu siha I kopian mensåhi. Si Yu’os
ma’åse’.
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